May 3, 2017
Mr. Takehiko Nakao
President
Asian Development Bank

Mr. Thomas Panella
Country Director, Afghanistan Resident Mission
Asian Development Bank

Dear Sirs:

I am writing to notify you that my office will be conducting a review of the Asian Development
Bank’s (ADB) Qaisar-Laman Road Project which began in 2006 for the purpose of constructing a
233-kilometer portion of the Ring Road in northwestern Afghanistan.t SIGAR is initiating this
review based on information we obtained during our investigation into the Afghan government’s
efforts to award a new contract to complete the Qaisar-Laman road. From January to August of
2016 the Afghan Ministry of Public Works (MoPW) negotiated a $99-million, sole source contract
with a joint venture of Aziz Wali Construction Company, Shamshad Badin Construction Company,
and Megayapi Construction Company (collectively “ASM JV”). The contract was supposed to be

financed through a grant from ADB.

An engineering consulting firm hired by MoPW to oversee the Ministry’s road construction
projects conducted a prequalification review of companies interested in bidding on the contract
for construction of the Qaisar-Laman road in late 2015. Even though the prequalification
deemed ASM JV not qualified to conduct the work and found two other bidders to be qualified,
ASM JV was slated to receive this sole source award. As detailed in SIGAR’s January 2017
Quarterly Report to the United States Congress, my office sent an official letter summarizing
these and other investigative findings to President Ghani on August 14, 2016.2 After reviewing
our letter, President Ghani cancelled the procurement in October 2016 and demanded that the

solicitation for construction be re-opened for competition and competitively awarded.

Our investigation into the proposed sole source award to ASM JV identified additional concerns

related to the Qaisar-Laman Road Project that warrant further review. Since 2006, ADB has been

1 This project, which was proposed in July 2005, initially covered the 90-kilometer section of the Ring Road
from Qaisar (in Faryb province) to Bala Murghab (in Badghis province). The scope expanded to cover this
larger 143-kilometer section from Bala Murghab to Laman (in Badghis province) in 2007.

2 SIGAR, Quarterly Report to the United States Congress, January 30, 2017, p. 47.
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financing construction of this portion of the Ring Road, the road network circulating inside of
Afghanistan connecting Mazar-e-Sharif, Kabul, Kandahar, and Herat, using funds provided by the
U.S. and other donors to ADB’s Asian Development Fund. As the second-largest donor to the
Asian Development Fund since at least 2005, the U.S. government has a vested interested in
ensuring that donations to the fund are safeguarded from waste, fraud, and abuse.3 Accordingly,
this review is intended to determine (1) what the Qaisar-Laman Road Project has accomplished
with the funding provided by the United States and other donor nations; (2) how much
construction remains to be done in order to finish this section of road; (3) how much of the ADB
grant funding MoPW has spent; and (4) how much more money is required in order to finish the

project.

My office is requesting documents from ADB and interviews with relevant ADB officials in order to

facilitate our review. Please provide the following information and documents:

1. The amount (dollar value) of funds spent since 2005 to construct the portion of the Ring
Road from Qaisar to Laman; this includes construction, consulting, security, and life
support costs associated with the project. Please also state how much of the road has
been constructed under the auspices of the Qaisar-Laman Road Project since 2005, and

how much remains to be constructed.

2. Copies of all grants, agreements, and contracts (as well as associated enclosures,
modifications, and amendments) for the construction, consulting, security, and life

support costs associated with the Qaisar-Laman Road Project since 2005.

3. All evaluations of the work completed by the prime construction contractors in ADB’s

possession.

4. Any documents reflecting Engineering, Compliance, & Construction, Inc. and Metag
Insaat Ticaret A.S. joint venture’s (“EM JV”) failure to comply with the terms of the
contract it received to construct the Qaisar-Laman section of the Ring Road, funded in
part by ADB’s $340 million grant to MoPW.

5. All documents related to the decision to award a sole source contract to ASM JV to

complete the project. Please also provide any documents in which ADB officials or

3 Since 2005, the United States has pledged $1,471,180,000 to the Asian Development Fund. The Asian
Development Fund provides funding for projects in Afghanistan, as well as in other ADB member countries.
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employees indicate their support for the use of a sole source contract to complete the

project.

6. All documents related to the decision to select Aziz Wali Construction Company as the
contractor for the camp maintenance contract beginning in February 2016, including

cost estimates for the work to be performed on this contract.

7. All documents establishing ADB’s oversight obligations related to the Qaisar-Laman Road
Project, and all documents and correspondence establishing that ADB met those

obligations.

| ask that you provide a response to this request and all requested documentation no later than
May 31, 2017. | am submitting this request under the authority of Public Law No. 110-181, as
amended, and the Inspector General Act, as amended. Should you or your staff have any
questions about this project, please contact Mr. Matthew Dove, Director of Special Projects, at
(703) 545-6051 or matthew.d.dove.civ@mail.mil.

Sincerely,

John F. Sopko
Special Inspector General
for Afghanistan Reconstruction

CC:

Mr. Michael Strauss
Alternate Executive Director for the U.S., Board of Directors, Asian Development Bank
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ENCLOSURE |: ASIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK RESPONSE TO SIGAR-17-43-SP
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